



Last modified: October 29, 2014

This manual was updated for the TeamDrive Desktop client version 3.2.1.809

Table of Contents

1	Intr	oduction	4
2	Inst	allation and Registration	4
	2.1	System Requirements	4
	2.2	TeamDrive Installer	5
	2.3	TeamDrive Recommended Practices	5
3	Firs	t Steps	6
	3.1	Registering, Entering a Provider Code and Logging In	6
	3.2	Monitoring Folders (Creating Spaces)	7
	3.3	Inviting Users and Accepting Invitations	9
	3.4	Inviting Yourself to Your Previously Created Spaces	12
	3.5	Joining (or Recovering) a Space	13
	3.5. data	1 How-to: Join/Recover a Space without having to re-download all of the data from the server (i.e a already exist locally on the machine)	
	3.5.	2 How-to: Join a Space that already exists locally on your machine or in TeamDrive's database	14
	3.6	Cancel Joining a Space (Archiving a Space while Joining)	16
	3.7	Relocating and Renaming a Space Folder	16
	3.7.	1 Relocating a Space Folder	16
	3.7.	2 Renaming a Space Folder	16
	3.8	Re-inviting a User	17
4	The	TeamDrive Explorer	18
	4.1	The Spaces View	18
	4.1.	1 Black Circle Overlay (Black Dot)	18
	4.1.	2 Managing Versions	19
	4.1.	3 Managing the Trash	20
	4.1.4		
	4.2	The Activity View	22
	4.2.	Event Messages These icons and their descriptions are displayed on the following page(s)	23
	4.2.		
	4.3	The Members View	25
	4.3.		
	4.3.	5 1	
	4.4	Server Selection	
	4.5	Versions Comments	28

	4.6	Publishing a File	30
	4.7	Conflicts	31
	4.7.1	Version Conflicts	31
	4.7.2	Name Conflicts	32
5	Setti	ngs	32
	5.1	General Settings	32
	5.2	Registration	33
	5.3	Space Settings	34
	5.4	Backup	34
	5.5	Server Access (Adding Additional Servers)	35
	5.6	Proxy Settings	36
	5.7	Permissions (Professional license)	36
	5.8	Notifications	37
6	Data	ı Backup	37
	6.1	Regaining Access to Your Spaces	37
	6.2	Space Access Keys	38
	6.3	Server Access Keys	
	6.4	Backing up Space and Server Access Keys	
	6.5	Key Repository	
	6.6	Restoring and Activating a Space	40
	6.6.1	Cancel Recovering a Space (Archiving a Space while Recovering)	41
	6.6.2	2 Archiving a Space	42
	6.7	Importing a Server Access Key	43
	6.8	Importing a Space	43
	6.9	Deleting a Space	45
7	Doci	ument Protection and Encryption	46
	7.1	Security	46
	7.2	Encryption	47
	7.3	Anti-Virus Software	47
	7.4	Notice Regarding Secondary/Log Data	48
	7.5	Notice to Companies Required to Store Confidential Data	48
8	Tips	Regarding Data Protection and Administration	48
	8.1	Notice Regarding Secondary Data/Log Data	49
	8.2	Notice to Companies Required to Store Confidential Data	49
9	lcon	Glossary	51

1 Introduction

TeamDrive enables the fast, easy and secure exchange of data between two or more computers. Once TeamDrive is installed you can create Space folders from scratch, or convert existing folders into Space folders, in as little as three mouse clicks. Your files and folders remain in your file system and can be opened and edited as usual. Meanwhile, TeamDrive automatically:

- Creates encrypted backups of the monitored Space folders on the Internet.
- Synchronizes all (shared) data with the other invited Space members.
- Saves older versions of edited files (file versioning).
- Encrypts files as they are transferred and saved.

As a TeamDrive member you have the choice of creating your own Spaces and deciding whether or not to invite others to join them. You also have the choice of joining Spaces that you are invited into. Additionally, you can synchronize data across multiple computer platforms (Windows, Mac OS X and Linux) and/or mobile devices (iOS and Android) on which you are using a TeamDrive client registered under the same username.

2 Installation and Registration

In order to install TeamDrive your computer will need to meet the minimum system requirements. You will need at least 250MB of free disk space, a valid email address and Internet access. In the end, the total amount of disk space used will depend on the size of your created and/or joined Spaces.

2.1 System Requirements

WINDOWS	MACINTOSH	LINUX
1 GHz Processor	Intel Mac	1 GHz x86 Processor
Windows XP/Vista/7/8	10.6 (Snow Leopard) or newer	KDE, GNOME
512 MB RAM	1 GB RAM	512 MB RAM
250 MB free disk space	250 MB free disk space	250 MB free disk space
Internet connection	Internet connection	Internet connection
Details can be found on the	Details can be found on the	Details can be found on the
<u>TeamDrive Windows forum</u>	<u>TeamDrive Mac forum</u>	<u>TeamDrive Linux forum</u>

You will also need a valid email address for registration and activation.

If you have any further questions, you can find answers on the TeamDrive website in the <u>FAQ</u> section or on the <u>TeamDrive Forum</u>. If you are experiencing problems installing or using TeamDrive please contact our <u>Support</u> <u>Team</u>.

To install or update TeamDrive please download and run the installation software.







Install-TeamDrive-3.0.0.46_TMDR.run

Img. 1: The installation of TeamDrive can be started by double-clicking the application icon



Note:

If you are installing TeamDrive for the very first time, an Internet connection is required to register. If you are an existing TeamDrive member, an Internet connection is also required to activate the client.

If it is your first time installing and using TeamDrive you will need to create a TeamDrive account. TeamDrive cannot be used without an account. To create an account, you will need to enter a desired username and password. The username must be at least five characters long and may not contain any special characters or spaces. The password must be at least eight characters long and may contain special characters, but no spaces.

2.2 TeamDrive Installer

After you have successfully downloaded TeamDrive, double-click the TeamDrive installation file to start the installation. Once the TeamDrive installer opens you will be able to install TeamDrive. For more help on installing TeamDrive, please refer to the <u>tutorial videos</u> on our website.

2.3 TeamDrive Recommended Practices

You should not use TeamDrive to synchronize databases. A database is usually stored in a file, which means that TeamDrive would have to transfer the entire file each time a data record was changed, which would lead to increased traffic and memory consumption on the server.

Avoid deeply nested directory structures. The operating system-specific restrictions on paths and file names also result in restrictions for TeamDrive users.

Microsoft Windows:

- Maximum length of the entire directory path: 247 characters
- Maximum length of file names: 259 characters

Linux:

- Maximum length of a path section: 255 Bytes
- Maximum length of a file name: 254 Bytes

OSX:

- Maximum length of a path section: 255 Bytes
- Maximum length of a file name: 255 Bytes



CAUTION:

If you share a Space with members with different operating systems, please observe the limits stated on file names in order to guarantee cross-platform compatibility.



The lengths specified in Bytes are based on the fact that Unicode is used in these file systems. Consequently, the maximum lengths depend on the characters used. As a rough guideline:

- A standard alphabet character (a-z, A-Z) = 1 Byte
- An extended alphabet character (German umlauts etc.) = 2 Bytes

Avoid storing all your data in just one Space. By granulating your Spaces more finely, it will be easier to control who has access to which data. This also reduces the need to re-sort files.

Do not move your Spaces to other drives or partitions; instead, use the "**Recover Space**" function. If you must store your Space on another hard drive or partition, choose "**Space**" > "**Recover Space**" in the TeamDrive Explorer and specify the new storage location.

Do not move your Space manually across partition or drive boundaries, as this could result in the loss of TeamDrive synchronization data because all meta information is re-created and it is then no longer possible to track which file was edited for the last time and when.

Avoid using special characters in file names and paths. It may be that these characters will not be supported on a different platform.

3 First Steps

3.1 Registering, Entering a Provider Code and Logging In

After starting TeamDrive you will see the options "I am already a TeamDrive user" and "I am new to TeamDrive". Below these two options is a field where you can enter a Provider Code. As an existing user you can enter your provider code if you know it. If you do not know your Provider Code it is enough to simply click "Continue" and log in. Your Provider Code will automatically be recognized via your login credentials.

If you are a new user registering for the first time or registering with a new username it may be essential, depending on your case, that you enter a Provider Code.

The Provider Code determines your provider of TeamDrive Services. This includes the Registration Service (where your username, password and email address are stored) and your default TeamDrive Cloud Storage.

You must specify a Provider Code in two cases:

- You are using TeamDrive for the first time and you wish to select a particular Service Provider. In this case, you can obtain the Provider Code from your Service Provider's Website.
- You would like to use TeamDrive Services provided by a Corporate IT Department. In this case, ask your System Administrator for the Provider Code.

If you register without specifying a Provider Code, TeamDrive Services will be provided by TeamDrive Systems with storage in the European Cloud (enter TDUS for the North American Cloud).

After registering your username please be sure to activate your account via the activation link sent to your registered email address. After clicking the activation link confirm in TeamDrive that you have clicked the activation link

and login on the following screen.



Registering, entering a provider code and logging in

3.2 Monitoring Folders (Creating Spaces)

After installing TeamDrive, creating a user account and logging in, the TeamDrive Explorer will start in the "**Spac-es**" view. In order to share files and/or work together with someone in a Space, you will first need to create or join a Space. To create a Space, click "**Create Space**" on the toolbar (you can also navigate through the file menu by selecting "**File**" > "**Create Space...**").



Click "Create Space" to open the Space Wizard and create a Space

On the first page of the SpaceWizard, you will need to decide whether you wish to create a new Space or convert an existing folder on your computer into a Space. If you create a new Space a new folder will be created within the Spaces directory on your computer.



Note: A Professional license allows you to create or store a Space on a network drive with a UNC path, e.g. '\\dss\...\server\share\...'.

If you would like to convert an existing folder into a Space simply select it from your file system or network drive.



Space Wizard Step 1: Create a new Space or select an existing folder to convert into a Space

Space Wizard Step 2: Enter a Space name

With a TeamDrive Professional license you also have the ability to select how many versions are stored on the server. There are proposed values of 1, 3, 5, 10 and unlimited. You also have the ability to enter a custom number of versions to be stored on the server. To do so, highlight "**unlimited**" and either erase the proposed value or just start to enter a value. The value you enter will be saved in the settings file of the client and remain as a selectable option for future Spaces you create.

9	TeamDrive Space Wizard	×	🕥 TeamDrive Space Wizard 💌
Create a Space Step: 2/3	3		Create a Space Step: 2/3
Location of Spaces: C:\Users\TD-KF\Desktop\TD3 F	Portable\Spaces		Location of Spaces: C:\Users\TD-KF\Desktop\TD3 Portable\Spaces
Name of the new Space: First Space			Name of the new Space: First Space
Invite all my devices Number of versions to be kept of unlimited	on server:		Invite all my devices Number of versions to be kept on server: Unlimited
unimited unlinted 10 5 3 1			Unimited Server: User_02's TeamDrive Server (TeamDrive Cloud) User_02's TeamDrive Server (TeamDrive Cloud) Import Server Add Personal Server Add Personal Server
	<< Back Cancel Next >		<< Back Cancel Next >>

Space Wizard Step 3: Select number of versions to be stored on the server

Space Wizard Step 4: Select the server to host the Space on

You also have the ability to select where the Space shall be hosted. "Server" allows you to select whether to use your default TeamDrive storage depot, a WebDAV server or a TeamDrive Personal Server. If you have not yet added a WebDAV or TeamDrive Personal Server, you may do so here.

After entering a name for your Space, click "**Next**" to create the Space. A summary detailing the Space name, location and server name will be displayed. At this screen it is also possible to invite users to your newly created Space.

The new Space will now be displayed in the TeamDrive Explorer. To locate the Space in your file system, right-click on the Space and select "**Show in File System**".

3	TeamDrive Space Wizard	🕲 I 📮 🚹 🖛 I	Spaces – 🗆 🗙
	Space successfully created Step: 3/3 Space: User_02's TeamDrive Server	File Home Share View (€) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (⊕) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥) (♥)	First Space
Space N First Spa Local Pa C:\User	ace	Desktop Desktop Downloads Documents Homegroup This PC	File folder
Server 1 User_0	lame: 2's TeamDrive Server	Network	Arunouity. Arunout chuire
۲	Space has been successfully created.		
		2 items 1 item selected	811 🖬

Space successfully created

Space displayed in file system (Windows)

3.3 Inviting Users and Accepting Invitations

To invite other users into a Space select the desired Space in the TeamDrive Explorer and click "**Invite Members**" on the toolbar. Alternatively, right-click on the Space and select "**Invite Members...**".



Invite a user

Using the Invitation Wizard you can invite users via their username OR their email address (you DO NOT need to enter both the username and email address on the same line). Enter the user's username or email address into the input field and click "**Add**". The Space you are inviting users to will also be displayed in the top-left corner of the Invitation Wizard. If you have changed the name of the Space locally you will have the option to choose which Space name the invite receives. They will not know your local name you have chosen for the Space unless you invite them to the Space using the local name.

0	TeamDrive		×
Invite Users			
Space Name: First Space Username / Email: User_01		Add	Users A

Add a user to invitation list

You can then set the user's privileges within the Space, enter an invitation message (or use the generic one created by TeamDrive) and optionally password protect the invitation. Password protecting invitations is useful in cases where you are unsure of a user's username, you are inviting a user via their email address or you simply want to add more security to you Space invitation. Users will not be able to join the Space without first entering the required password. You may invite multiple users at once.

9	TeamDrive	×
Invite Users		
Space Name: First Space Username / Email:	Add	Users ^ User_02
User_01 <user_01@teamdrive.de></user_01@teamdrive.de>	Read/Write Image: Constraint of the second	

Set user rights

To complete the invitation process click "Invite Users".

From User: User_02 Space: First Space	^
Message: Please join my Space.	~
lote: Email is sent unencrypted! Please do not send sensitive information.	
Password protect the invitation (optional)	
	🔐 📗
Show Password	

Complete invitation process and invite the user



Note:

Non-TeamDrive members are invited to join Spaces, and TeamDrive, via emails that could potentially be intercepted by malicious third parties. Members sending invites are therefore advised to confirm the email addresses of non-TeamDrive members before sending invitations. In addition, the "**password protect the invitation**" feature is a viable option for encrypting invitations. Using a password will also help to prevent unintentional invitees, possibly due to misspelled usernames or email addresses, from joining a Space.

The invited user will receive a Space invitation notification via email and a Space invitation within the TeamDrive client. Space invitations can only be accepted or declined via the client. Within the Space invitation notification email are links to download TeamDrive installation software; for use in case TeamDrive is not already installed on the recipient's machine.

When a Space invitation is received, the "**Invitation List**" icon on the toolbar will display a red asterisk. Before accepting the invitation you have the opportunity to rename the Space folder, select a new path where the Space shall be saved and select whether you would like to download all file versions or only the current versions of files. The available options depend on the license type (Free, Personal or Professional). You will have the option to: "download current version only", "download all versions" or "download directory information only" (Professional license only).

5	TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗖 🗙	6	TeamDrive 3 - User 02 – 🗖 🗙
File Edit Space Extr		File Edit Space Ext	
Create Space Invite Memb	C R	Create Space Invite Memb	C 85) hers Invitation List Details View
Join Space by Invitation	(1/1) 💽 💟 🗙	Join Space by Invitation	(1/1) 💽 💽 🗙
	First Space User_01 Ved Feb 26 14:39:34 2014		First Space User_01 Wed Feb 26 14:39:34 2014
Original Name: Space Size (Files):	First Space	Original Name: Space Size (Files):	First Space
	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space		C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space
Join mode:	Download current version only	Join mode:	Download current version only Download current version only Download diversions Download diversions Download directory information only Do
	Copy files from specified path		Copy files from specified path
Path;	Decline	Path;	Decine
☐ 88 10	t 💷 🔹 🔹	□ 88 ₪	t •

Accept an Invitation: Selecting the Space path

Accept an Invitation: Select Space join mode

Lastly, before finally accepting the invitations and joining the Space, if the files contained in the Space you are about to join already exist on a local or external drive TeamDrive can copy or move the files from that location to the new location where the Space will be joined. More information on this method of joining a Space can be found in section "Joining (or Recovering) a Space".

a l	TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗖 🗾 📉
File Edit Space E	tras View Help
(a) (A)	C** (B)
Create Space Invite Mer	bers Invitation List Details View
oin Space by Invitation	(1/1) 💽 💟 🗙
Space Nam	First Space
From	v User_01
Invitation Tim	: Wed Feb 26 14:39:34 2014
Original Nam	First Space
Space Size (Files	: 1.4 MB (3)
Space Pat	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space
Join mod	Download current version only
	Advanced -
Path optio	Copy files from specified path
	Copy files from specified path
Pat	Move files from specified path
	Decline Accept
C 28 E	

Accept an Invitation: Copy or move Space data from an alternate location

Once the Space invitation has been accepted, the files will begin to sync.

3.4 Inviting Yourself to Your Previously Created Spaces

If you have just installed a TeamDrive client on a new machine and are wondering why you are unable to see Spaces you have already created/joined, it is important that you invite yourself to your previously created/joined Space(s). Via your existing TeamDrive client installation, right-click on the Space you wish to invite yourself to (or highlight all of your Spaces and right-click on them) and select "**Invite All My Devices**". An invitation will then be sent to all of your currently activated TeamDrive clients.

,o.			Space:	First Space	
ame		Size Di	ate Status:	ок	
First Space	(Show in File System Create Folder)Sales3\Spaces\Fir	st Space
		Copy Paste	Strg+C Strq+V	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
	4.00.	Remove Locally Restore Missing Files		Size: 2 7 MB (19%)	2.0 GB
	0	Recover Space Archive Space Delete Space			+
		Scan Space for Change	25	Administrator	
10		Space Synchronization	Off		
rsion	-	Invite Members	Strg+Un	nschalt+l	
	-	Invite All My Devices	Strg+Un	nschalt+O	
		Send Email to Space M	embers		
🗖 88 iez	E	Empty Trash			

"Invite All My Devices"

Alternatively, you can use the backup files from a previous TeamDrive installation to import and restore access to your Spaces, and their server settings, on a new TeamDrive client installation. More information on restoring Spaces can be found in the section "Restoring and Activating a Space".

Backup files can also be imported from the **Key Repository** if you have this function turned on. By default, this feature is turned on. More information on the **Key Repository** can be found in the section "Key Repository".

You can also invite yourself to your Spaces using the TeamDrive app for mobile devices.

3.5 Joining (or Recovering) a Space

3.5.1 How-to: Join/Recover a Space without having to re-download all of the data from the server (i.e. the data already exist locally on the machine)

In many cases, when joining or recovering a Space, the data already exist locally on your hard drive, on a flash drive, external hard drive, etc. This can also be the case when one master account has created Spaces, uploaded data and would like to share this data with their friends, colleagues or coworkers without them having to down-load all of the files from the server. In an office of 20-30 people, everyone downloading the same amount of data at once may put some strain on the network, especially if the files are big. To ease this process TeamDrive allows users, when joining or recovering a Space, to alert TeamDrive to the fact that the data already locally exist. You can then have TeamDrive copy or move the data from this location to the new location where the Space will be stored.

First, users need to be, of course, invited into the Space (if the Space is being recovered from a backup file, the backup file(s) need(s) to be imported). When joining or recovering a Space, the data can be downloaded completely from the server, restored from the existing Space folder on your machine (if the Space is being recovered) or copied or moved from any other existing folder on your local machine or an external hard drive. To view and select one of these options click the "**Advanced**" button in the "**Space Invitation**"/"**Recovery**" window. You will then see a drop down menu with the options, "**copy files from backup**" (if you are recovering the Space), "**copy**

files from specified path", and "move files from specified path". Select the desired option, and file path if necessary, and click "Accept"/"Recover".



Join Space via invitation

Join Space via restore/recover

TeamDrive will then compare the local versions of the data with the latest versions on the data on the server. If the versions match, the local data will be copied or moved to the Space. If the versions do not match, the versions from the server will be downloaded.

3.5.2 How-to: Join a Space that already exists locally on your machine or in TeamDrive's database.

There exist different scenarios where you may attempt to join a Space and TeamDrive tells you "**Space already** exists", "The Space folder already exists" or "Space folder already exists".

"**Space already exists**" lets you know that this particular Space ID already exists in the database. This can be the case for different reasons, e.g. multiple users share a single TeamDrive installation and are trying to join the same Space with their respective accounts, a single user with multiple TeamDrive accounts is trying to join the same Space with multiple accounts, a user with only one account deleted the Space in the file system, and not via TeamDrive, and is trying to join the Space, etc. To get passed this error message and be able to successfully join the Space, the Space needs to be deleted in the TeamDrive database.

An easy way is to uninstall and re-install TeamDrive. This will then, of course, clear all Spaces from the database and all Spaces will have to be rejoined. This is, yes, an easy way but not the most desirable. Instead, the user who joined the Space on that respective machine needs to log in and delete the Space via TeamDrive. The Space will then be removed from the database and other users will be able to join the Space on that machine. If the Space no longer appears in TeamDrive when the necessary user logs in, this user needs to first restore the Space and then delete it. It is not necessary to rejoin the Space completely. You can start the recovery/join process and then select "Cancel Joining a Space (Archiving a Space while Joining)". It is also possible to use a portable installation of TeamDrive to allow multiple users to join the same Space on the same machine. It is possible to achieve this with a portable installation because the TeamDrive database for a portable installation is stored in a different location as the database of the standard TeamDrive installation.

3	TeamDrive 3 - User_02 -
File Edit Space Ex	tras View Help
50 G	C) (3)
Create Space Invite Memi	bers Invitation List Details View
Join Space by Invitation	(1/1) 💽 💽 🗙
	First Space
	User_01 : Thu Feb 27 14:08:14 2014
Original Name	
Space Size (Files)	
Space Path	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space
Join mode	Download current version only
	Advanced +
	Decline
	Space already exists.

"Space already exists"

"The Space folder already exists" and "Space folder already exists" let you know that there is a folder or Space, in the directory where you are attempting the save the Space, with the same name. This can occur if you delete a Space via TeamDrive and elect not to delete the Space folder locally, if you are migrating data from one computer to another by copying the Spaces folder from computer 1 to computer 2 etc. (section "How-to: Join/Recover a Space without having to re-download all of the data from the server (i.e. the data already exist locally on the machine)"). You can either rename the existing folder in that directory, save the Space you are joining to a different directory or rename the Space you are joining.

9	TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗖 🗙
File Edit Space Ex	tras View Help
50 G	C) (3)
Create Space Invite Men	ibers Invitation List Details View
Join Space by Invitation	(1/1) 💽 💽 🗙
A.1 Heater	E First Space
	n: User_01
	e: Thu Feb 27 14:08:14 2014
	: First Space
Space Size (Files	
Space Path	n; C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space
Join mode	E Download current version only
	Advanced +
	The Space folder already exists.
☐ 88 III	t •

"Space folder already exists"

3.6 Cancel Joining a Space (Archiving a Space while Joining)

While joining a Space it is possible to cancel the join process. This will actually archive the Space and allow you to recover the Space at your earliest convenience. To cancel joining a Space, right-click on the Space during the join process and select "**Cancel joining Space...**". This option, however, will not become available until the events of that Space have begun to be downloaded. Once TeamDrive has begun downloading the folder's events from the log, it is possible to cancel joining the Space.



"Cancel joining Space..."

3.7 Relocating and Renaming a Space Folder

3.7.1 Relocating a Space Folder

Relocating a Space folder is a simple and straightforward process. To move a Space folder, first you need to shut down the TeamDrive client. After the client has been shut down, move the Space folder to the newly desired location in the file system and start TeamDrive after that.

Upon starting, TeamDrive will recognize that the location of a Space folder has changed and will ask you for the new location of the Space folder. Browse to the new location of the Space folder, select it and that's it!

Your Space folder has now been relocated.

3.7.2 Renaming a Space Folder

To rename Space, first you need to shut down the TeamDrive client. After the client has been shut down, rename the Space folder, in the file system, and start TeamDrive.

Upon starting, TeamDrive will recognize that the location of a Space folder has changed and will ask you for the new location of the Space folder. Browse to the newly named Space folder, select it and that's it! Your Space folder has now been renamed.

9	Space Not Found ×
0	Error: Space not found in the file system.
Space:	First Space
Path:	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3le - Manual\Spaces\First Space
	Select New Path.
	Archive Space
	Ignore

Relocating/Renaming a Space folder

3.8 Re-inviting a User

In some cases you may often need to invite the same user to a Space over and over again. The reasons for this can of course vary: the user left the Space by accident, the user has a new TeamDrive installation, etc.. Instead of going through the entire invite process using the Invitation Wizard you can simply right-click on the desired user and select "**Re-invite User To Space**". If you click on the "**Spaces**" tab the users will be displayed on the right side of the screen in the "**Members**" window. If you are on the "**Members**" tab you will see a list of all members in your address book. When the invitation has been sent you will receive an 'invitation sent' notification as usual and the user will receive an invitation to the Space.

9	TeamDrive 3 - User_02 -					
30	Space Extras	View Help	() etails View			
😑 Spaces	88 Members	📾 Activity		Space Information		
, 0 -				Space: First Space		
Name	Space	Size	Date	Status: OK Owner: User_01 Path: C:\Users\TDSales3\Spaces\First Space ID: 42483 Server Size: 2.0 67.9 MB (3%) Advanced Members		
< Version	Size	Date	> User >	liser Pinhts	•	

Re-inviting a user to a Space

4 The TeamDrive Explorer

4.1 The Spaces View

The "**Spaces**" view is the default view of the TeamDrive Explorer. Virtually all of the TeamDrive functions can be called up from here (i.e., creating Spaces, inviting members, etc.). First, select a Space of your choice, then either select "**Space**" on the menu bar or right-click on the Space name, or icon, to execute actions for the selected Space.

The context menus provide commands to manage your Spaces. Some of the settings in the context menus can only be used with an active Internet connection. If you are not connected to the Internet, you will receive error notifications. The commands from the context menus can also be found in the TeamDrive Explorer menus. Once you click on a Space, more information about the Space is shown in the windows on the right.

TeamDrive 3	- User_02 - 🗆 🗙
File Edit Space Extras View Help	
Spaces Stembers III Activity	Space Information -
P- Spaces	Space: First Space
Name Size Date	Status: OK Owner: User_01 Path: C:Users\TDSales3\Spaces\First Space Space ID: 42483 Server Size: 2.0 GB 67.9 MB (3%) Advanced + Members -
<	Ilser Binhts
Version Size Date Use	User_01 (Owner) Administrator
88 150	

Spaces View

4.1.1 Black Circle Overlay (Black Dot)



The transfer of data on a server includes the exchange of metadata and the actual data. The metadata (the contents and context of data files, i.e.: filenames, modification date, etc.) is usually the first data that is sent to and received from a server. So, before your TeamDrive client actually downloads the actual data, the metadata is already on your computer.

With the metadata you have the details of the file, however, the file is not actually in your file system yet. Here is where the black circle overlay (black dot) comes into play. The black circle overlay symbolizes that the metadata of that particular file has been received, BUT the data has not yet been downloaded to your file system. The download will usually take place after a short moment or is already in progress. If TeamDrive has not downloaded the data after an extended period of time (or if you do not have time to wait for TeamDrive to retrieve the data) right-click on the file, or the Space folder, and select "**Restore Missing Files**". The file, or all files (if you clicked on the Space folder) with the black circle overlay will then be retrieved from the server and fully synced with your client.

You may not always know when files have not been retrieved from the server. TeamDrive does not alert you to this situation. Files with the black circle overlay are usually noticed while going through Space folders. There is a simple way to locate all files that have a black circle overlay.

In the '**search**' bar (while on the "**Spaces**" tab), change the filter (the arrow pointing down under the magnifying glass) setting to "**Missing Files**". All missing files in all Spaces (if any) will then show up where your Space folders previously were.

TeamDrive 3	- User_02 - 🗆 🗙	💿 TeamDrive 3 -	User_02 ×
File Edit Space Extras View Help		File Edit Space Extras View Help	
Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View		Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View	
Spaces Seaces Activity	Space Information +	Spaces 🏭 Members 🎫 Activity	Space Information -
P Search All	Members +	. <i>₽</i> +	Space: First Space
Name Search All ● Search Explicit ● Upload in Progress ● Conflicts ● Published Files ● Delayed Files ● Filter Comments ● Missing Files ● Version ^ Size Date ● Version 1 1.1 MB 6/4/2013 5:21 PM	Details	Name Size Date Image: Space Image: Space Image: Space Show in File System Image: Space Create Folder Image: Space Copy Start file.docx Paste Start file.docx Paste Start file.docx Paste Start file.docx Delete Entitie Rename Start file.docx Start Start file.docx Restore Missing Files Start Start Start Start	Size: 2.0 GB
28 E Ø		88 📼	

Black Circle Overlay: Show only missing files

Black Circle Overlay: Restore missing files

4.1.2 Managing Versions

TeamDrive uses a file versioning system, which creates new versions of a file instead of overwriting the original file. By default, all file versions are stored on the server. File versioning is managed on a per Space basis. This means that the number of version to be kept for a file depends on the version settings of the Space the file is in. During the creation of a Space you have the ability to select how many versions of files contained in the Space will be stored on the server. Again, by default, all versions are kept on the server.

Individual versions can be manually deleted by right-clicking on a version in the version tree and selecting "**Delete**". It is only possible to delete a file version when it is not set as the current version.

5		Team	Drive 3 - Us	er_02		-	×
30	6		Ð				
🗖 Spaces	vite Members Inv	III Activity	sview				
,∕⊃ , lame	2	Size [)ate	User			
📄 Img	o IMG_20121011_1. 21585608_WR.jpg file.docx	1.1 MB 6 320.0 KB 6		User_0 User_0	1 1 1		
/ersion ^	Size	Date	User		Parent		_
Version 1	Download Vers Open Open With Delete Unpublish	6/4/2013 5-31 PK	1 User_01(TEA			
85-	Make Version (Current			•	_	



With a Professional license it is possible to change the version settings of a Space even after a Space has been created. This can be done by clicking on the Space and clicking on "Advanced" on the right in the window "Space Information". Scroll down to "Number of versions to be kept on server" and alter the number of versions to be stored on the server.

9	TeamDrive Space Wizard	×	Spaces	Members	🗐 Activity		Advanced		^
Create a Sp Step: 2/3	ace	_	Name	x bace	Size	Date	Size: Files: Trashed Files: Type:	1.4 MB 3 37 Keep all v on server	
Location of Spaces: C:\Users\TD-KF\Desktop\TD	23 Portable\Spaces						Server URL: Space creation date: Last join date:	http://td2ace/vol02/ 6/5/2013(User_01) 2/27/2014 4:33 PM	
Name of the new Space: First Space							Automatic Scan a Periodic Scan	nd Monitoring	
Number of versions to be ke unlimited unlimited	pt on server:	Ţ,					Scan on startup Download directo Delete files from trasi		
10 5 3 1			< Version *	Size	Date	> User	never Number of versions to unlimited	o be kept on server:	
	<< Back Cancel	Next >>	< 88 I	EØ		>	unlimited unlimited 10 M 5 3 1	+	•



Managing Versions: Change number of versions for a Space

4.1.3 Managing the Trash

Each TeamDrive Space has its own respective trash can. All files in the trash remain on the server until the trash is emptied. The number of files currently in the trash can be seen in the window "**Space Information**" under the section "**Advanced**". You do not see, however, how much Space on the server the files in the trash occupy. The value displayed next to "**Size**" represents the total size of file versions, residing in that Space, currently stored on your machine. To empty the trash, right-click on the trash of a Space and select "**Empty Trash**". All files in the trash can will then be permanently deleted from the server. It is only possible to empty the trash can if you have administrator rights in a Space.

With a Professional license it is also possible to have the trash emptied automatically after a set amount of time. The options range from "**never**", "**180 days**", "**90 days**", "**60 days**", "**30 days**", "**14 days**" and "**7 days**". These settings can be found in the window "**Space Information**" under the section "**Advanced**" > "**Delete files from trash after**".

S TeamDrive 3	- User_02 - 🗆 🗙	Spaces ## Members II Activity	Advanced -
File Edit Space Extras View Help			Size: 1.4 MB
😋 🙆 😁		Name Size Date	Files: 3
Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View		First Space	Trashed Files: 37
Spaces ## Members II Activity	Space Information -		Type: Keep all v on server
	Space: First Space		Server URL: http://td2ace/vol02/
			Space creation date: 6/5/2013 (User_01)
Name Size Date	Status: OK		Last join date: 2/27/2014 4:33 PM
Photo 6/6/2013 10:	Owner: User_01 Path: C:\Users\TDSales3\Spaces\First Space		Automatic Scan and Monitoring
mg 21585608_WR.jpg 320.0 KB 6/3/2013 4:4	Fun. 0.10361311D00163515p006311131 Sp006		Periodic Scan
Test file.docx 11.0 KB 5/30/2013 1:			
Trach	Server		
Empty Trash	Size: 2.0 GB		Scan on startup
	67.9 MB (3%)		Download directory information only
	Advanced +		
	Members -	< II >	Delete files from trash after:
< > >	User Rights	Version Size Date User	never Apply
Version Size Date User	Liser 01 (Owner) Administrator		180 days be kept on server:
	User_02 Administrator		90 days Apply
< >		<	60 days 30 days
88 📼		C 88 HO	14 days
			7 days

Managing the Trash: Emptying a Space's trash

Managing the Trash: Setting trash to automatically empty itself

4.1.4 Icon Descriptions

8	The user in the Space The icon representing you.
8	Space Member Normal Space member.
	Invited Member A member who has been invited to the Space but has not yet joined.
e	Unknown User A user who does not have a TeamDrive account yet. This icon could be seen if a member has been invited via email.

By right-clicking on a member, you can view user-related options such as changing user rights (If you have the rights to do so).

4.2 The Activity View

The "**Activity**" view has two windows: the messages window and the upload/download list window. Both windows have status indicator icons. After making a selection, the corresponding status is shown in the "**Messages**" window under "**Status**". The two windows display the status of data transfers (sending/ receiving). The messages window displays live upload/download progress while the list window simply displays the file's upload/download status. This allows you to easily monitor the transfer of data.



Activity View

4.2.1 Event Messages

These icons and their descriptions are displayed on the following page(s).

	File download.		File upload.
	File download incomplete and in progress.		File upload incomplete and in progress.
Ð,	File download incomplete.		File upload incomplete.
Į.	Download incomplete,		Upload incomplete.
I	Download in progress.		Upload in progress.
:=0	Show all downloads.	:=	Show all uploads.
("Remove User" incomplete.		Progress.
<u>S</u>	Non-registered user invited via email.		File upload failed.
8	User join incomplete.		File download failed.
2	User "leave Space" incomplete.		User invite failed.
8	Self invite incomplete.	æ 🖟	New folder creation event processed.
	(Trash Event) download.	.	New folder creation event received but not ye processed.
1	(Trash Event) upload.		New folder creation event sent and confirmed
R.	(Trash Event) download incomplete.	B	New folder creation event sent but not yet confirmed.
Ð	(Trash Event) upload incomplete.	.	Folder move event received and processed.
	(Trash Event) request received but not yet processed (in progress).	.	Folder move event received but not net processed.
	(Trash Event) request sent but not yet confirmed (in progress).	*	Folder move event sent and confirmed.
3	(Trash Event) download permanently deleted.	*	Folder move event sent but not yet confirmed
5	(Trash Event) upload permanently deleted.		Document move event received and processed.
	(Trash Event) upload incomplete/permanently deleted.	3.	Document move event received but not yet processed.

•••	Document move event sent and confirmed.	<u></u>	Restore from trash event sent and confirme
- ‡→	Document move event sent but not yet confirmed.		Restore from trash event sent but not yet confirmed.
12	Folder rename event received and processed.		
<u>7</u>]	Folder rename event received but not yet processed.		
<u>\</u>	Folder rename event sent and confirmed.		
1	Folder rename event sent but not yet confirmed.		
	File rename event received and processed.		
71	File rename event received but not yet processed.		
	File rename event sent and confirmed.		
<u>I</u>	File rename event sent but not yet confirmed.		
	File version merge event received and processed.		
	File version merge event received but not yet processed.		
	File version merge event sent and confirmed.		
	File version merge sent but not yet confirmed.		
a .	File attribute, or access rights, change event received and processed.		
a	File attribute, or access rights, change event received but not yet processed.		
aî	File attribute, or access rights, change event sent and confirmed.		
a	File attribute, or access rights, change event sent but not yet confirmed.		
	Restore from trash event received and processed.		
<u>م</u>	Restore from trash event received but not yet processed.		

4.2.2 Logging Out of TeamDrive

At any given time you have the possibility to log out of TeamDrive on your local machine. To log out of TeamDrive select "**File**" > "**Quit and Logout**". The current user account will then be logged out on that machine. Logging out of TeamDrive gives another user the possibility to login with their TeamDrive account on the same machine. You also have the possibility to register a new TeamDrive account. After you have logged out of TeamDrive, start the application again. When TeamDrive starts you will see the same login screen you normally see when you first install TeamDrive and start it for the first time. At this screen you can register, login with a new user or login with your usual account.



Logging Out of TeamDrive

4.3 The Members View

In the "**Members**" view you will be see an overview of which users are members of which Spaces. Also, users who are no longer members of Spaces you are a member of are also displayed here. To remove a user from this list, right-click on the user and select "**Delete User from Addressbook**" (a member can be deleted from your address book if and ONLY if the user is no longer a member of any of the Spaces you are a member of).





4.3.1 Changing Member Rights

The "**Spaces**" view has three windows. After selecting a Space, all members in the Space are displayed in the "**Members**" window. Right-click on a member whose rights are to be changed. Select "**Change Rights**" from the context menu and apply the desired user rights. The change is then synchronized with all clients connected to the Space. Members can be modified only by users with administrator rights.

📮 Spaces	38 Members	Activity	8 -		Space Information -
, 0					Space: First Space
Name ▷ S First	♪ Space	Size	Date	User_01	Status: OK Owner: User_01 Path: C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktoanual\Spaces\First Space Space ID: 42483 Server Size: 2.0 GB G7.9 MB (3%) Advanced + Members User Rights User_01 (Owner) Administrator
Version *	Size	Date	User	P	Re-invite User To Space or Change Rights Administrator Show User Details Superuser Remove User From Space Read/Write
< 88	ΈØ		1	>	Read (Anonymous)

Changing Member Rights

4.3.2 Removing a Space Member

The "**Spaces**" view has 3 windows. After selecting a Space, all members in the Space are displayed in the "**Members**" window. Right-click on the member you wish to remove from a Space. Select "**Remove User**" from the context menu to remove the member from the Space. Once a member is removed from a Space re-entry into the particular Space (without receiving a new invitation to the Space) is not possible, even if the deleted member attempts to restore the Space using their backup file. Members can only be removed by users with administrator rights.

🗖 Spaces 👪 Members 🖼 Activity		Space Information -
		Space: First Space
Name Size	Date User_01	Status: OK Owner: User_01 Path: C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktoanua\\Spaces\First Space Space D: 42483 Server Size: 2.0 GB 67.9 MB (3%) Advanced + Members - User Rights
Version As EO	User P	User_01 (Owner) Administrator Re-invite User To Space Change Rights Show User Details Remove User From Space

Removing a Space Member

4.4 Server Selection

There are two different protocols that can be chosen when establishing a connection to a server.



If you wish to use TeamDrive to manage larger amounts of data and/or a large number of users and to optimize the speed of data transfers between members, as well as data security, you will probably want to use TeamDrive HTTP- servers. These servers use the HTTP protocol and port 80.

- This is a good protocol if you are using a firewall.
- You have the option of using proxy-servers.
- Easy accessibility can be ensured via monitored servers.



This protocol is pre-set after installation

A WebDAV server provides all users with a standardized working environment. TeamDrive can make working with these servers significantly more comfortable and secure. No passwords or access data have to be sent to your own WebDAV server and all data on the server is automatically encrypted.

- No server installation is required.
- TeamDrive is the best client for any WebDAV server.
- WebDAV access information needs to be set only once.



Note:

The login information for WebDAV servers will not be transferred in encrypted form when an HTTP transfer takes place. Unauthorized access to your TeamDrive data is still not possible, however, because TeamDrive itself heavily encrypts data (256-bit AES) before it is transferred to a server. Protocol-wise, there is a theoretical possibility of third party access to the WebDAV login information. The data TeamDrive stores on the server, nevertheless, remains untouchable.

Within the TeamDrive client you can configure WebDAV servers via HTTPS which means that even the login information will be encrypted.

4.5 Versions Comments

TeamDrive also offers you the ability to leave '**version comments**'. Comments can consist of anything. For example, a reference made to the processing status of a shared document: "**50% completed**". Comments, and the version number the comments are related to, are displayed when the file is selected. Comments can be easily dispatched via email to Space members depending on the license you have.



Version Comments: Add a comment

Version Comments: Entering a comment

A maximum of 140 characters are allowed in the text-box. If you decide to share the comment via email (Professional license) please note that the comment will be transmitted in an unencrypted form.

Spaces	Members	Activity		Space Information	
,Q				Members	÷
Name		Size	Date	Version Information	
4 🧟 First Space			2122220000	Datei: IMG_20121011_145059.jpg	
Photo		. 1.1 MB (6/6/2013 10:	Details	-
img2158 Monoration International Internatio		320.0 KB (11.0 KB (5/30/2013 4:4 5/30/2013 1:	Version 1 Comment by User_02: 3/3/2014 3:15 PM Draft completed! Ready for final version!	5 (i)
c 📃			>		5245
د Version 5	Size	Date	> User		1220.0
Version 5 Version 1 1		Date 6/4/2013 5:21 P	User M User		
Version S			User		

Version Comments: Viewing a version comment

To delete a version comment simply click on the trash can in the comment window. Click "Yes" to confirm the deletion of the comment.

📛 Spaces 👪 Members	🖅 Activity		Space Information +
<i>.</i> ۹۰			Members +
Name	Size	Date	Version Information -
 First Space Photo IMG_20121011. Img 21585608_WR. Test file.docx Size Version Size Version 1 1.1 MB 		Yes > User	emove this comment?
<	_	>	

Version Comments: Deleting a comment

4.6 Publishing a File

The ability to publish a file to the web is available depending on the license you have. Right-click on the file you would like to publish and select "**Publish Version**" from the context menu (this action can also be carried out through the "**Edit**" menu on the menu bar). A new window will open displaying the generated URL.



Publishing a Version

Publishing a Version

By selecting "**Publish**" the file will be uploaded to the server in an unencrypted form. This function cannot be used with WebDAV servers. The file's address can also be dispatched via email. To 'unpublish' a file, first navigate to the desired file in TeamDrive. Looking in the version tree, find the version of the file that has been published, right-click on the file and select "**unpublish**". Published files can be quickly found using the search filters. You can find more info on search filters in the section "**The Spaces View**".

9		Tea	mDrive 3 -	User_02 - 🗆	×
File Edit Spa Create Space In	ace Extras V	iew Help	tails View		
😑 Spaces	Members	📧 Activity		Space Information	÷
<u>م</u>				Members	+
Name		Size	Date	Version Information	
Test	21585608_WR.jpg file.docx file.rtf h	11.0 KB 308 Bytes	6/6/2013 10: 6/3/2013 4:4 5/30/2013 1: 3/3/2014 3:5	File: Img 21585608_WR jpg Details Version 1 This version is published under Img 21585608 WR jpg	
Version	Size	Date	User		
Version 1	320.0 KB	6/3/2013 4:48	PM User		
88 🗉	Ø				

Publishing a Version

4.7 Conflicts

4.7.1 Version Conflicts

Version conflicts can occur when a file is simultaneously in use by multiple parties and a new version for the file is saved and uploaded from two separate locations. It is also possible to have version conflicts with a single user if he/she has multiple installations.

🕥 TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗖 🗙	🜀 TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗆 🗙
File Edit Space Extras View Help	File Edit Space Extras View Help
Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View	Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View
Spaces 👪 Members 🎟 Activity	Spaces States III Activity
	8
Name Size Date User Image First Space User_01 Photo 6/6/2013 10:07 User_01 Image 12585608_WR.jpg 320.0 KB 6/3/2013 4:48 PM User_01 Image 1585608_WR.jpg 320.0 KB 6/3/2013 4:48 PM User_01 Image Test file.docx 11.0 KB 5/30/2013 1:39 User_01 Image Test file.docx 11.0 KB 5/30/2013 1:39 User_01 Image Test file.ntf 308 Bytes today 3:53 PM User_01 Image Trash Trash Trash	Name Search All Name Search Explicit Date User Upload in Progress Bytes today 3:53 PM Ocnflicts Delayed Files Filter Comments Missing Files
Version Size Date User Parent	Version Size Date User Parent
Wersion 3 308 Bytes today 3:53 PM User_01 (td-kf 1 Version 2 Version 1 Version 3:53 PM User_02 (USB 1 Version 1 Version is conflicted. Iss PM User_02 (USB 1	Wersion 3 308 Bytes today 3:53 PM User_01 (td-kf 1 Wersion 2 37.7 KB today 3:53 PM User_02 (USB 1 Version 1 40.2 KB today 3:52 PM User_02 (USB 1

Version Conflicts

Version Conflicts: Filtering for conflicts

An easy way to find files marked with the red 'conflict' overlay is to use the filter function. There is a filter function on every tab (Spaces, Members, Activity) but you should use the filter on the "**Spaces**" tab. Just below the "**Spaces**" tab you will see a magnifying glass with a text field to the right of it. Click the dropdown arrow next to the magnifying glass and select "**Conflicts**". All files labeled with the red 'conflicts' overlay will then be sorted.

From there you can select which version should be the latest version and TeamDrive will recognize the changes and continue to sync the file as normal.

-				8		Two or more v		onflicted.	
ie ^		Size Date		User		Please choose	which one of	them will be	current.
First Space				User_01		Test file.rtf			
Test file.rtf	-	Show in File System		"ser_01					
Trash	-	Contraction of the second second			Version	Size	User	Parent	Date
	•	Create Folder			3 🗋	308 Bytes	User_01	1	today 3:53 PM
		Сору	Strg+C		2	37.7 KB	User_02	1	today 3:53 PM
		Paste	Strg+V						
		Rename	F2						
	3	Delete	Entf						
		Remove Locally							
		Restore Missing File	s:						
sion Size	_	Download File		Parent					
Version 3 308 I Version 2 37.7	-	Open File	Strq+0	-kf 1					
Version 2 37.7 Version 1 40.2			Jugro	B 1 B					
Version 1 40.2		Open File With		P					
		Resolve Conflict	B						
		Add Comment							
88 150	0	Publish Version							Accept Cance

4.7.2 Name Conflicts

In the event that TeamDrive no longer syncs due to files having too long file/path names, or there are two files or folders in a Space that have the same name, you simply need to find the files/folders and rename them.

TeamDrive 3 - User_02 -	💿 TeamDrive 3 - User_02 – 🗆 🗙
File Edit Space Extras View Help	File Edit Space Extras View Help
Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View	Create Space Invite Members Invitation List Details View
Spaces 👪 Members 🖽 Activity	Spaces 👪 Members 🎟 Activity
	OT CALLAN
Name Size Date User_01 Image: First Space User_01 0.06/2013 10:07 User_01 Image: Photo 6/6/2013 10:07 User_01 Image: Mig_20121011_1 1.1 MB 6/4/2013 5:21 PM User_01 Image: Mig_20121011_1 1.1 MB 6/4/2013 5:21 PM User_01 Image: Mig_20121011 Name conflict with other file or dir. Image: Mig_2012001 Name conflict with other file or dir. Image: Mig_2012001 Name conflict with other file or dir. Image: Mig_2012001 No representation in file system (virtual). Image: Trash File/Dir not accessible in file system. Image: Photo 12/11/2013 2:2 User_01	Name Search All Image: Search Explicit Date Upload in Progress Bytes today 3:53 PM User_01 Image: Search Explicit Im
2013-06-05 16-5 3.5 MB 12/11/2013 2:2 User_01 2013-06-05 16-5 2.7 MB 12/11/2013 2:2 User_01	Version Size Date User Parent Version 3 308 Bytes today 3:53 PM User_01 (td-kf 1
Version ^ Size Date User Parent Version 1 1.1 MB 6/4/2013 5:21 PM User_01 (TEAM	Wersion 2 37.7 KB today 3:53 PM User_01 (u-K) 1 Version 1 40.2 KB today 3:52 PM User_02 (USB 1

Name Conflicts

Name Conflicts: Filtering for conflicts

An easy way to find files marked with the red 'conflict' overlay is to use the filter function. There is a filter function on every tab (Spaces, Members, Activity) but you should use the filter on the "**Spaces**" tab. Just below the "**Spaces**" tab you will see a magnifying glass with a text field to the right of it. Click the dropdown arrow next to the magnifying glass and select "**Conflicts**". All files labeled with the red 'conflicts' overlay will then be sorted.

From there you can rename the files/folders and TeamDrive will recognize the changes and continue to sync as normal.

5 Settings

5.1 General Settings

In the toolbar under "**Extras**" \rightarrow "**Settings...**" you can reach all the settings of the TeamDrive client. The "**Auto-start**" function allows TeamDrive to start automatically after the start of the computer. If you do not wish to have TeamDrive start automatically you need to uncheck the "**Autostart**" box.

The **Total working set size** is the maximun size of the folder where TeamDrive temporarily and permanently stores data necessary to work and function properly. As a general rule of thumb TeamDrive needs at least double the size it attempts to synchronize and it is recommended to use around triple that size. This is why the default value is 5 GB with our free 2 GB account. With that you could e.g. synchronize one 2 GB file or two 1 GB files if you are so inclined.

Upon installing TeamDrive a path for the database and the required cache is defined. The default path is located, on Windows, on the 'C' drive. If the database and the cache location need to be changed for any reason, the new path can be selected here. Once you have changed the file path to where you want the database to be stored, a short notification stating "**Data location will be moved on restart**" will appear.

Here you also have the ability to change/select the display language for TeamDrive. The current available languages are: **English**, **Finnish**, **French**, **German**, **Norwegian** and **Spanish**.

3	-			Settings				×
	-2	(2	1A	1	S	5	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
General Settin	gs							_
🖌 Autostart					Delay Backgrou	ind Processes in Au	tostart by: 1	minute(s)
TeamDrive Ca	che, Temporary T	ransfer and Da	ta Settings					
Sector Contraction of Contract	che, Temporary T es3\Desktop\TD3 Po	ransfer and Da		\Data]	
Choose the lang	uage for TeamDrive	: ा English	*					

Settings: General

5.2 Registration

Here you have the ability to change your registration email address. Simply type in the new email address you would like to use and click "**Change**".

If you have forgotten your password please select "**Forgotten**" in the "**Change Password**" section. You will then see a notification indicating that a temporary password has been sent to your registered email address (be sure to check you SPAM folder for the email). Enter the temporary password in the required field and then enter your new password. The password must be at least 8 characters long and may contain special characters, but no spaces.

6				Settings				×
	<u> </u>		2	(A)	1	6	6	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Registration								
Registration Na	me: User_02							
Registration Em	nail: user_02@team	drive.de						Change
Change Pass	ord:							Forgotten
Verify Passwo	1							Change
_								

5.3 Space Settings

Here you can change the default Space location and disable the scan of Spaces in the file system on startup. TeamDrive's default setting is to scan the Spaces in the file system on startup. Here, that can be disabled. To disable this function check the "**Disable Scan of Spaces in File System on Startup**" box. Once selected, TeamDrive will no longer scan the Spaces in the file system when the application starts.

The default storage location for your Spaces can also be changed here. To change the location as to where Spaces are stored, click the "..." button on the right and browse to the folder where you wish to store your Spaces.

3				Settings				×
(×		4		1		5	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Space Setting	S							
Disable Sca	in of Spaces in File	System on Startup						
Default Space								
C:\Users\TDSa	iles3\Desktop\TD3 P	ortable - Manual\Sp	aces					
File Change D	etection							
Compare M	odification Date and	Size (faster)						
O Compare M	odification Date, Siz	e and File Content (slower)					

Settings: Space

5.4 Backup

Here you can decide whether to backup server and Space access information. By default, TeamDrive creates backups of server and Space access information. This can be disabled here by unchecking the "**Backup Server and Space Access Information**" box.

You can also define the location of where your Space and server access keys are saved. By default a "**Backups**" folder is created in your "**Spaces**" folder. You can change the storage location of your backups at any time. For more information on data backup, please see the section "Data Backup".

٢				Settings				×
(<i>~</i>				1	٤)	6	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Backup								
✓ Backup Se	rver and Space Acc	ess Information						
Backup Locatio	on: C:\Users\TDSa	les3\Desktop\TD3	Portable - Manual\Sp	aces\Backups				
	Backup Now	Import						
Key Reposito	ory							
Disable Ke	y Repository						Import	
		erver Key Pennsi	itory stores the keys	to all your Space	s The Key Renn	sitory is encrypted y	vith your password, and	Lcan
	essed by you, after a		tory atorea the keya	to all your Space	а. тне кеу керо	sitory is encrypted a	vitil your password, and	Call
When in use	, the Key Repository	serves as a back	up for your Space k	eys, and it also e	nsures that you h	nave access to your	Spaces when you login	to
TeamDrive or	n a different device.							
The Key Rep	ository can be acce	ssed as long as y	ou remember your p	assword, or you	have a valid logir	n on one of your Tea	mDrive devices.	

Settings: Backup

5.5 Server Access (Adding Additional Servers)

Your server information is displayed here. If you have more than one server available for use you can also set the default server here. The options to import, export and add a WebDAV or TeamDrive Personal Server are also available on this tab. Only server files ending with ***.tdsv**, ***.sakh**, ***.sakhs**, ***.sakw**, ***.sakws** and ***.sakp** can be imported. When exporting a server, servers are exported as ***.tdsv** files. There is also the possibility to remove a server (the ability to add a WebDAV server depends on which license you are using: Free, Personal or Professional).

۹				Settings				×
	43	(2	14		S	6	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Server Access					•			_
User_02's TeamE	Drive Server (Tear	nDrive Cloud)					•	Default
Details of your 1	FeamDrive Clou	d Server						
Server Name:	User_02's Team	Drive Server						
Server ID:	31092							
Contract Number:	PS#User_02-20	130603						
Server Owner:	User_02							
Server URL:	http://td2ec2in4	mgteuwest.teamd	lrive.net/pbas/p1_a	s/p1a/				
Host Name:	tdhosting.td2ec	2in4mgteuwest.te	amdrive.net::Team	DriveMaster				
							R	emove Server
				Import Server	Export Server.	Add WebDAV Ser	ver Add Per	sonal Server
				import our vol	Loport Server.	AND THOUGHY SET	Add Pol	John Gervel

Settings: Server

5.6 Proxy Settings

If necessary, a proxy can be setup on this tab. We have also added the ability to setup an automatic proxy configuration URI using PAC files. A **Proxy Automatic Configuration (PAC)** file is a file that acts as a URL or site routing control file for a web browser. Simply put: The PAC controls how the browser retrieves an object - directly, bypassing the proxy or via a proxy. The PAC can also return different proxy servers based on conditions found in the file.

0				Settings				x
	A		2		13	20	5	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Proxy Settin	gs							
Proxy: A Http-Proxy: Port: Username: Password: Config UR:	Edit							

Settings: Proxy

5.7 Permissions (Professional license)

TeamDrive offers the ability to create new roles and apply custom "**Member Actions**", "**Space Operations**" and "**File Operations**" permissions to them. You can also delete roles here. However, you can only delete roles you have created. The default roles cannot be deleted. Default roles include **Administrator**, **Superuser**, **Read/Write**, **Read** and **Read (Anonymous)**. Full descriptions of the privileges of each role can be found in the TeamDrive client in the **Permissions** section.

Administrator Master-User Read Read (Anonymous)	ř.				Settings				
Administrator Master-User Read (Anonymous) Read/Write Member Actions View Other Members View Other Members Create New Role Delete Role Save Role Member Actions View Other Members Change Rights Space Operations Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete File on Server Delete File on Server Delete File on Server		<i>2</i>	(3)	4	1	US.	a	5	
Administrator Master-User Read Read (Anonymous) Read/Write Member Actions View Other Members View Other Members View Other Members Remove Members Remove Members Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete File on Server View Other Server Delete File on Server	General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Master-User Read Read (Anonymous) Read/Write Member Actions View Other Members Create New Role Delete Role Save Role Members Change Rights Space Operations Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete File on Server File Operations Delete File on Server File Operations	Roles								
Read Read (Anonymous) Read/Write Create New Role Delete Role Save Role Wember Actions View, Other Members Remove Members Remove Members Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete Space on Server File Operations Delete File on Server Delete File on Server Delete File on Server Delete File on Server	Administrator								
Read (Anonymous) Read/Write	Master-User								
Read/Write	Read								
Create New Role Delete Role Save Role Member Actions View Other Members View Other Members Remove Members Change Rights Space Operations Delete Space on Server Poblish File Delete File on Server Ø Delete File on Server Ø Delete File on Server	Read (Anonyr	nous)							
Member Actions View, Other Members Remove Members Remove Members Detectors Detectors Detectors Publish File Detectors Detec	Read/Write								
Member Actions View, Other Members Remove Members Remove Members Detectors Detectors Publish File Publish File Detectors Vectors									
Member Actions View, Other Members Remove Members Remove Members Detectors Detectors Publish File Publish File Detectors Vectors						1	Create New Role	Delete Role	Save Role
✓ View Other Members ✓ Invite Members ✓ Remove Members ✓ Change Rights Space Operations ✓ Delete Space on Server File Operations ✓ Delete File on Server ✓ Delete File on Server ✓ Modify File									
Vivite Members Remove Members Change Rights Space Operations Detete Space on Server File Operations Publish File Dublish File Dublish File Modify File	Member Action	15							
✓ Remove Members ✓ Change Rights Space Operations ✓ ✓ Detelets Space on Server File Operations ✓ ✓ Publish File ✓ Detelets File on Server ✓ Detelets File on Server ✓ Detelets File on Server									
✓ Change Rights Space Operations ✓ ✓ Delete Space on Server File Operations ✓ ✓ Delete File on Server ✓ Delete File on Server ✓ Modify File									
Space Operations Image: Operations <									
Delete Space on Server File Operations Veublish File Deter File on Server Modify File									
File Operations									
Publish File Delete File on Server Mindify File									
 ✓ Delete File on Server ✓ Modify File 									
Modify File									
	in nosto								
5.8 Notifications

The **Notifications** tab allows users to configure TeamDrive's built in notification system. Here you can decide if you would like TeamDrive to notify you about **conflicts and errors**, **invitations and members**, **files and versions** and **comments**. With a Professional license you can even elect to be notified about **conflicts and errors via email**. You can also configure in which corner of the screen the pop-up notification should appear (and on which screen if you are using multiple monitors), the duration of the pop-up notification, if you would like to be reminded that you have received pop-up notifications and the maximum number of notifications that can be seen on-screen at once. Once the max notifications has been reached, the notifications are grouped into their respective categories and a general message is displayed.

3				Settings				×
	2	(3)	2	1	1	\$	-	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Notifications	Settings							
Notifications	Events				Display O	ptions		
Confli	cts and Errors							
	otifications about con ames that are too long			and about				
Display n	otification on screen			•		Choose the c	orner to display	
Receive n	ions and Members otifications about invi that have joined or lef		been sent or receiv	red and about		nom	cations	
Files a	and Versions							
Receive n	otifications about nev	v or changed files	S.		Screen:		1 (Pt	imary) 👻
Comm	ents				Display du	ration (in seconds):	30	•
Receive n	otifications about nev	v comments.			Show rem	inder (in minutes):	Neve	er 🔻
-					Maximum r	number of notificatio	ns: 4	•
					Show	application alert on i	notification	
						will cause the appl different color if en	ication's taskbar entr abled.	y to flash

Settings: Notifications

6 Data Backup

The access key(s) for your Space(s) are stored on your local client so they should be carefully protected. It is possible to store encrypted backups of your access key(s) on the server using the "Key Repository". By default, the "Key Repository" is enabled. If you elect to continue using the Key Repository, encrypted backups of your keys will be stored on the server which will allow you to regain access to your Spaces after you have created new installations, have had a hard drive failure, etc. More information regarding the Key Repository, and how to disable it, can be found in the section "Key Repository". If you elect to disable the "Key Repository", the access key(s) for your Space(s) will only be stored on your local machine. With that said, they should be carefully protected as they are one of your only means of regaining access to your Spaces!

6.1 Regaining Access to Your Spaces

In the event that your device crashes, your device is lost or stolen, you install a new hard drive, you create a new TeamDrive installation on a new device, etc. you will, of course, need to regain access to your Spaces. If you have

the "<u>Key Repository</u>" enabled you should automatically receive invitations to your Spaces. If it is not enabled you will need to refer to "<u>Importing a Space</u>" as well as "Restoring and Activating a Space" or simply refer to "<u>Joining</u> (or Recovering) a Space" via an invitation. You can also use "<u>Inviting Yourself to Your Previously Created Spaces</u>" or "<u>Inviting Users and Accepting Invitations</u>".

6.2 Space Access Keys

A backup file (containing the Space access keys as well as the access keys to the servers the Spaces are stored on) is generated each time a new Space is joined or created. For security reasons they are tied to the activation of the member. The key entries enable the restoration of a Space.

6.3 Server Access Keys

For every server, a server access key is required. This allows users to restore access to the necessary servers. Server access keys are generally stored, in conjunction with the Space access keys, in the TeamDrive backup files. Server access keys can also be individually imported and exported via the TeamDrive client.

6.4 Backing up Space and Server Access Keys

Under "**Settings**" > "**Backup**" > you can define the location of where your Space and server access keys are stored. By default a "**Backups**" folder is created in your "**Spaces**" folder. You can change the location of the backup at any time.

Image: Constraint of the second se	
Backup Backup Server and Space Access Information Backup Location: C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\Backups	
Backup Server and Space Access Information Backup Location: C:Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\Backups	
Backup Location: C:Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\Backups	
Backup Now Import	
Key Repository	
Disable Key Repository Import.	
When enabled, the Registration Server Key Repository stores the keys to all your Spaces. The Key Repository is encrypted with your password only by accessed by you, after a valid login.	and can
When in use, the Key Repository serves as a backup for your Space keys, and it also ensures that you have access to your Spaces when you TeamDrive on a different device.	ogin to
The Key Repository can be accessed as long as you remember your password, or you have a valid login on one of your TeamDrive devices.	

View backup directory in TeamDrive

We recommend, if possible, saving your access files to an external storage device. So, in the event of a complete system crash, you can still restore your TeamDrive Space(s) and the connection(s) to your server(s). It also enables you to set up TeamDrive on another computer.



Note:

Passing on Space information to third parties is pointless, as Space information is specific to your account.

For file system storage purposes the backup's filename contains your username and a timestamp. To restore a Space or access to a server from a backup, the backup file must be imported. Once the backup file has been imported the Space(s) can be restored.

	Back	tups			>
File Home Share	View				^
Copy Paste Paste Copy path	Move to * X Delete *	New folder New	Open • Derties Open Open	Select all Select none Invert selection Select	'n
📀 🅘 🔹 🕇 📕 « Docum	ients → Spaces → Backups	~ 0	Search Backup	iś	p
			XBm	x J 🖃	6
☆ Favorites	Name	^	Date modified	Туре	2
	User_01_14	4-02-27+14-04-12.tdbk	2/27/2014 2:04 PM	A TDBK File	-
🔣 Homegroup		1-02-24+07-23-40.tdbk		A TDBK File	-
	User_02_14	4-02-25+06-15-04.tdbk	2/25/2014 3:15 PM	/ TDBK File	
惧 This PC	User_02_14	4-02-26+15-12-01.tdbk	2/26/2014 3:12 PM	/ TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-26+15-12-47.tdbk	2/26/2014 3:12 PM	/ TDBK File	
Setwork	User_02_14	4-02-26+15-15-57.tdbk	2/26/2014 3:15 PM	A TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-26+16-33-52.tdbk	2/26/2014 4:33 PM	A TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-27+14-07-07.tdbk	2/27/2014 2:07 PM	A TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-27+1 <mark>4-</mark> 25-37.tdbk	2/27/2014 2:25 PM	A TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-27+15-09-16.tdbk	2/27/2014 3:09 PM	A TDBK File	
	User_02_14	4-02-27+15-36-55.tdbk	2/27/2014 3:36 PM	/ TDBK File	
	<				>
26 items 1 item selected 1.58	KB				

'Backups' folder in file system

6.5 Key Repository

The Key Repository allows you to store encrypted backups of your Space keys on the server. This is useful in the event that your device crashes, your device is lost or stolen, you install a new hard drive, you create a new TeamDrive installation on a new device, etc., and you do not have access to your backup files. By default, the Key Repository will be enabled. To disable the Key Repository please select "**Disable Key Repository**". By that all keys stored on the server will be deleted. If you decide to re-activate the feature again in the future all keys to all Spaces that you currently have on the device you are activation the feature on will be uploaded again after you create a Space event like creating or deleting a Space.

When enabled, the Registration Server Key Repository stores the keys to all your Spaces. The Key Repository is encrypted with your password, and can only be accessed by you, after a valid login.

When in use, the Key Repository serves as a backup for your Space keys, and it also ensures that you have access to your Spaces when you login to TeamDrive on a new/different device.

The Key Repository can be accessed as long as you remember your password, or have a valid login on one of your TeamDrive devices.

With the Key Repository enabled you will automatically receive invitations to Spaces you have previously joined, after you have created a new TeamDrive installation. In the event you do not receive invitations to all of your Spaces, you can manually import the remaining Spaces by selecting "**Import**" in the "**Key Repository**" area of the "**Backup**" section on the "**Settings**" panel.

۲				Settings				×
(2)	×					8	6	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Backup								
Backup Serve	er and Space Acces	ss Information						
Backup Location:	C:\Users\TDSale	s3\Desktop\TD3	Portable - Manual\Sp	aces\Backups				
	Backup Now	Import						
Key Repository								
Disable Key F	Repository						Import	
			tory stores the keys	to all your Space	s. The Key Report	sitory is encrypted v	vith your password, and	can
only by access	sed by you, after a v	valid login.						
	he Key Repository s a different device.	erves as a back	up for your Space ke	eys, and it also e	nsures that you h	ave access to your	Spaces when you login t	0
		ned as long as w	ou remember your pa	annword or you	have a valid logic	on one of your Tea	mDrive devices	
The Ney Nepus	nory can be acces	acu ua long ua y	ou remember your pe	433 Word, or you	nave a valia logili	for one of your real	indiffe defices.	

Settings > Backup > Key Repository

6.6 Restoring and Activating a Space

In the event that you have left a Space locally, reinstalled TeamDrive or your operating system or simply wish to use your TeamDrive account on another computer (such as a notebook), you can use the corresponding backup files (*.tdbk) to import and restore the Space. Detailed information regarding importing Spaces is outlined in the section "Importing a Space".

🚍 Spaces 👪	Membe	rs 💷 Activity	Space Information	
, 0 -			Space: First Space	
Name		Size Date	Status: Space Arch	nived
First Space	0	Show in File System Create Folder		ales3\Spaces\First Space
		Copy Paste	Strg+C Strg+V	
	E	Remove Locally Restore Missing Files	sug+v	Size: 0 Bytes
		Restore Space		
د 📃	0	Archive Space Remove Space		Rights
/ersion Si	iz	Scan Space for Changes		
		Space Synchronization Off		
	\odot	Invite Members	Strg+Umschalt+I	
¢ 🗉	-	Invite All My Devices Send Email to Space Memb	Strg+Umschalt+O ers	
88 📼	6	Empty Trash		

Restoring a Space

Exceptions: If the Space has been removed from the server (and the SpaceDepot server) restoration is no longer possible. An administrator can revoke a member's access to data by removing the member from the Space. All data from this Space on the member's computer will be erased the next time an Internet connection is established. The restoration of the Space will not be possible for this member.

Upon importing a Space using a backup file (section "<u>Importing a Space</u>"), the Space will have the same appearance as that of an archived Space ('greyed' out). To begin the Space restoration process right-click on the Space and select "**Restore Space**". When restoring the Space data, the data can be downloaded completely from the server, restored from the existing Space folder on your machine or copied or moved from any other existing folder on your local machine or an external hard drive. To view and select one of these options click the "**Advanced**" button. You will then see a drop down menu with the options, "**copy files from backup**", "**copy files from specified path**", and "**move files from specified path**". Select the desired option, and file path if necessary, and click "**Restore**".

9	TeamDrive 3 - User_02	- 🗆 🗙	5	TeamDrive 3 - User_02	- 🗆 🗙
File Edit Space Ext	ras View Help		File Edit Space Ext	ras View Help	
50 Cà	O 6)		50 63	8 6	
Create Space Invite Memb	ers Invitation List Details View		Create Space Invite Memb	pers Invitation List Details View	
Restore Archived Space	(1/1)	S 🖸 🗲	Restore Archived Space	(1/1)	🛛 📭 🗙
Space Name:	[[2] 22 22 23 23 22 24 [1] 22 24 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25		Space Name:		
	Wed Jun 5 12:45:10 2013			Wed Jun 5 12:45:10 2013	
Original Name:			Original Name:		
Space Size (Files):	Jon Statistication and		Space Size (Files):		
Space Path:	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space		Space Path:	C:\Users\TDSales3\Desktop\TD3 Portable - Manual\Spaces\First Space	
Join mode:	Download current version only	1	Join mode:	Download current version only	•
	Download current version only Download all versions		0	Backup Space Folder	
	Download directory information only	Auvanucu -			Advanced -
Path option:	Copy files from specified path	-	Path option:	Copy files from specified path	x
				Copy files from specified path	3
Path;		- 10 a 2	Path:	Move files from specified path	
	Cancel	Restore		Cancel	Restore
☐ 88 ■				1	•
	∎ ¥				

Restoring a Space: Join mode

Restoring a Space: Copy/Move files from an alternate location

Members who have been deleted from a Space are not able to restore the Space using their backup file. Once a member is removed from a Space, re-entry into the particular Space (without receiving a new Space invitation) is not possible, even if the deleted member attempts to restore the Space using their backup file.

6.6.1 Cancel Recovering a Space (Archiving a Space while Recovering)

While recovering a Space it is possible to cancel the recovery process. This will actually archive the Space and allow you to recover the Space at your earliest convenience. To cancel recovering a Space, right-click on the Space during the recovery process and select "**Cancel joining Space...**". This option, however, will not become available until the events of that Space have begun to be downloaded. Once TeamDrive has begun downloading the folder's events from the log, it is possible to cancel joining the Space.



Cancel Recovering a Space

6.6.2 Archiving a Space

TeamDrive allows you to archive Spaces at your leisure. If, for example, a project has been completed and the data on the local disk is no longer needed, the data can be safely and securely archived for later use. To archive a Space, either right-click on the Space and select "**Archive Space**" from the context menu or select "**Archive Space**" from the "**Space**" menu on the menu bar while the Space is selected.



Archiving a Space

Afterwards, you will see a prompt asking whether you would like to remove the data stored locally in the file system. If nothing is checked, the data will remain in the file system. Once a Space is archived the data remains on the server at all times.

6.7 Importing a Server Access Key

A "Server Access Key" can be imported by navigating to the "Settings"/"Preferences" window and selecting "Server Access" > "Import Server..." and selecting the file containing the server access key.

Q.				Settings				×
	4		2	14	12	S	6	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Server Access								
User_02's Team	nDrive Server (Tear	mDrive Cloud)					•	🔲 Default
Details of your	TeamDrive Clou	d Server						
Server Name:	User_02's Team	Drive Server						
Server ID:	31092							
Contract Number	r: PS#User_02-20	130603						
Server Owner:	User_02							
Server URL:	http://td2ec2in4	mgteuwest.teamo	frive.net/pbas/p1_a	s/p1a/				
Host Name:	tdhosting.td2ec	2in4mgteuwest.te	amdrive.net::Team	DriveMaster				
							Der	move Server
								INOTE SELVEL
				Import Server	Export Server	Add WebDAV Se	Add Perso	onal Server
				import our en	Export Dervet.	A00 11000AV 30	Add Perso	

Importing a Server

6.8 Importing a Space

In the event that you have left a Space locally, reinstalled TeamDrive (or your operating system) or simply wish to use your TeamDrive account on another computer (such as a notebook), you can use the corresponding backup file to import the Space.

۲				Settings				×
00	×	(3)					-0	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Backup								
 Backup Serve 	r and Space Acce	ss Information						
Backup Location:	C:\Users\TDSale	es3\Desktop\TD3	Portable - Manual\	Spaces\Backups				
	Backup Now	Import						
			20					
Key Repository								
								_
Disable Key R							Import	
	the Registration Se ed by you, after a		tory stores the key	/s to all your Space	s. The Key Repos	sitory is encrypted v	vith your password, and ca	an
		serves as a back	up for your Space	keys, and it also er	nsures that you h	ave access to your	Spaces when you login to	
TeamDrive on a	different device.							
The Key Repos	itory can be acces	ssed as long as y	ou remember your	password, or you	have a valid login	on one of your Tea	mDrive devices.	

Import a Space from a backup file

To import a Space, navigate to the "**Backup**" tab in the "**Settings/Preferences**" area. If you have your backup files handy you can select "**Import from Backups...**", and choose the desired backup file(s) (you have the ability to se-

lect multiple backup files at once) you would like to import. If you do not have your backup files available to you, and you have the "**Key Repository**" turned on, you can use the "**Import**" button from the **Key Repository** section below. A dialog will then appear listing all Spaces that can be imported from the backup file(s) you have selected.

۲				Settings				×
0 2	æ)	(3)		1	U\$	٤)	5	
General	Registration	Space	Backup	Server	Proxy	Permissions	Notifications	
Backup								
Backup Serv	er and Space Acce	ss Information						
Backup Location	C:\Users\TDSale	es3\Desktop\TD3	Portable - Manual\S	Spaces\Backups				
	Backup Now	Import						
Key Repositor	/							
Disable Key	Repository						Import	
	, the Registration S sed by you, after a		tory stores the key	s to all your Space	s. The Key Repos	itory is encrypted w	vith your password, and	can
	he Key Repository a different device.	serves as a back	up for your Space	keys, and it also er	nsures that you h	ave access to your	Spaces when you login	to
The Key Repo	sitory can be acces	sed as long as y	ou remember your	password, or you	have a valid login	on one of your Tear	mDrive devices.	

Import a Space from the Key Repository

By default, all Spaces will be checked. To deselect all of the Spaces right-click and select "**Select None**" or deselect "**All**". To select all, check the "**All**" check-box or right-click and select "**Select All**". "**Import Servers**" and "**Import Address Book**" are also checked by default. They contain your server information and all members who appear under the "**Members**" tab. When you are finished selected the Spaces to be imported select "**Import**". The Spaces will then appear under the Spaces tab, ready to be restored.

9	Te	amDrive 3	- User_02 - 🗆 💌
File Edit Space Extras V	View Help	etails View	
🗖 Spaces 👪 Members	B Activity		Space Information -
.e.			Space: First Space
Name First Space	Size	Date	Status: Space Archived Path: C:\Users\TDSales3\Spaces\First Space Space ID: 42483
			Server Size: 0 Bytes 0 Bytes (0%)
<		>	
Version Size	Date	Use	Members – User Rights
< 11		2	

Space imported

Detailed information regarding restoring and activating a Space is outlined in the section "<u>Restoring and Activat-ing a Space</u>".

6.9 Deleting a Space

To delete a Space, right-click on the Space, or click on "**Space**" on the main menu toolbar and select "**Delete Space...**".



Deleting a Space

To delete the Space locally, check "**Delete the Space folder**". To delete the Space on from the server, check "**Delete Space on Server**". To delete the Space both locally and on the server, check both boxes. Checking nothing will remove the Space from the "**Spaces**" view of the TeamDrive client. The Space won't be synchronized anymore and you leave the Space but it will still exist locally and on the server.



Deleting a Space locally, from the server or only from the TeamDrive client

7 Document Protection and Encryption

Document protection and encryption is managed automatically by TeamDrive, allowing the user to concentrate on the actual exchange of data within the virtual network. Thanks to automatic version control, it is always easy to tell which document represents the most recent version. Attached to every version is information detailing the author, version, the preceding version, and the date it was last edited. In addition, a comment can be attached to every version. With the '**version timeline**', you can view all versions of a document, follow the changes made, and resolve conflicts between versions.



Note:

At no time during the exchange of data via TeamDrive does non-encrypted data reside on the 16 TeamDrive First Steps network. All documents are encrypted before being sent to and saved on the server. The decryption of this data is only possible for team members and cannot be done on the server. This way, TeamDrive guarantees optimal protection for your team's documents.

Even though other techniques (for example email with PGP encryption, VPN) enable the secure transfer of data, these methods are complex, time consuming and are too error-prone to be used on a regular basis. TeamDrive automatically integrates data encryption into the work process without requiring any user interaction. This is the only way to ensure comprehensive data protection.



Note:

The excellent data protection capabilities of this technology make TeamDrive the ideal tool especially for lawyers, financial advisers, researchers, scientists and the medical community. TeamDrive not only makes exchanging data fast and easy, it also makes it very secure.

All local data, including earlier versions, comments and status information is archived on the server by TeamDrive.

7.1 Security

The individual client PC or USB device should be adequately protected from third party access. TeamDrive is not security software for the PC or your mobile device. All data sent by TeamDrive will be highly encrypted before it is actually sent. Local data on your personal device will, most of the time, be unencrypted. In addition to standard security policies like boot passwords, TeamDrive can be installed and run on encrypted partitions or containers to increase the security (i.e. TrueCrypt or PGP encrypted volumes). In regard to this, we recommend reading the security tips in this handbook.

It is important to have a basic understanding of the security requirements of your own computer or any IT or network infrastructure that you use. Security and reliability are two major features of TeamDrive. All actions taken by the TeamDrive client are highly secure and protected from external access. Most actions take place automatically or are available to the user via the controls.



Note:

We recommend viewing the information provided by the BSI (<u>https://www.bsi.bund.de/EN/Home/home_node.html</u>) for more information on this topic.

Due to potential security threats and the increasing reliability on IT security measures, all institutions (large or small) have to find a solution for several essential security concerns. The following is our position on the aspects of security directly connected to TeamDrive.



Note:

TeamDrive takes no responsibility for the security of data on your computer or your server, but guarantees, however, the security of data uploaded and downloaded within the TeamDrive network.

7.2 Encryption

The encrypted transfer of data is TeamDrive's underlying security feature. The encrypted exchange of data classifies itself into three steps:

Step 1: When a member is invited into a Space the TeamDrive software receives the public key from the registration server.

Step 2: In order to access a (shared) Space, a 'data-key' (256-bit AES key) is created locally and encrypted with the member's public key. It is then sent to the member via a private communication path. At no time is this key located on a relay server.

Step 3: Before your data leaves the client PC, the Space's data is encrypted using your data key. This data is then saved on a relay server in an encrypted form. The encryption is such that the Space's data can only be accessed by the Space's members. Since every member has their own key, they are authorized and can receive data from the Space. This data is then decrypted using their data-key and can then be viewed or edited locally on their machine.

7.3 Anti-Virus Software

TeamDrive data stored on a computer is guarded by the local antivirus software. The software tests the relevant file when the TeamDrive database is accessed. Your current antivirus software should always guard all Spaces in your local file system.



We recommend having your own local antivirus software. Every TeamDrive user quickly acquires many Spaces and files (files potentially accessed and/or edited by every member of the Space) with various different teams. Self-protection is the safest method!

7.4 Notice Regarding Secondary/Log Data

Personal data saved as files within a Space can be permanently deleted, together with all their contents, by a member of the Space with administrator privileges. The names of the files remain in the Space log file for as long as the Space exists.

Every user who creates a Space is, by default, the owner and administrator of the Space. If this user deletes the Space from the server, all of the data in the Space, including the log file with all its contents, are deleted (all primary and secondary data are deleted).

If a member leaves a Space, all information in relation to that member (e.g. membership, joining the Space, leaving the Space, which data they edited, etc.) is kept within the log file. The log file will not be deleted as long as the Space exists. If, for example, if a member who is leaving a Space insists that all of their data be deleted, the Space itself must be deleted. If you wish to retain the data in the Space added by other Space members the data must be backed up before the Space's deletion, a new Space must be created and the data must be moved into the new Space.

7.5 Notice to Companies Required to Store Confidential Data

TeamDrive is designed to store and share confidential data and information. The encryption methods and technologies used by the TeamDrive client safeguards all data from being accessed by unauthorized third parties.

Unauthorized access to your data can only be initiated by the user. For example, wrongfully assigning user access rights to a Space.

We recommend, to companies required to store confidential data, using password protection, for example, when sending Space invitations. Protecting your invitations with passwords add an additional level of protection and require the invited user to enter the given password before they can accept the invitation. We advise using a password which contains numbers and upper/lowercase letters.

8 Tips Regarding Data Protection and Administration

TeamDrive's compliance with data protection regulations is recognized by companies and institutions. In order to enable optimal compliance with data protection regulations, the following advice regarding installation and use of this product should be followed.

The individual client PC should be adequately protected from unauthorized third party access. Regarding this, we suggest reading the "Document Protection and Encryption" section of this handbook.

Required for the use of TeamDrive is that personal information must be sent to the product manufacturer's registration server. The requirements are an email address, a username and a password. The transfer of this data to the registration server is encrypted, rendering access by a third party impossible as of the current state of technology.

Please be aware that protocol data, as well as data stored in a Space may be subject to legal restrictions. It is the user's responsibility to make sure that any such restrictions are followed.

It is the administrator's responsibility to ensure that all laws and regulations regarding the proper use and protection of data are observed while using TeamDrive.

In cases where this product is used without an internal data Space Depot, contracts with the provider of the Space Depots need to be observed. Here, there are no differences compared to other IT products that use an external

database. The contractor has to be carefully chosen and written instructions must be provided. Further information regarding this can be found at <u>http://www.datenschutz.de/privo/partner/projektpartner/</u>. You can also contact us for further help. We can also provide contacts, if you wish to set up an external server.

When using the default cloud services for data storage of TeamDrive in Europe, data is stored automatically on servers in Europe. This automatic disk space allocation of users during the registration is based on their IP address during registration. The server mapping is not changed later, no matter where the user is located in the world. TeamDrive can the server mapping at the informal request of the user by email to support@teamdrive.com. The server URL of any space can be seen in the Space's detail view in the TeamDrive Explorer. All TeamDrive cloud URLs pointing to European servers have "EU" in their URL.

Space:	My first Space	
Status:	OK	
Owner:	User	
Path:	C:\Users\Tea	mDrive-RP\Documents\Spaces\My first Space
Serve	r	
		Size: 2,0 GE
		528,5 KB (0%)
_		Traffic Limit: 20,0 GB per Month
		27,7 MB (0%)
		Upgrade
Advar	nced	
Size:		20,5 KB
Files:		1
Trash	ed Files:	0
Space	D:	41893
Type:		Keep all versions on server
Serve	r URL:	http://td2ec2in4mv1euwest.teamdrive.net/primespace/vol01/
Space	e creation date:	28.05.2013 15:31 (User)
Last jo	oin date:	today 10:48
A	utomatic Scan a	and Monitoring
O Pe	eriodic Scan	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
-	an on startup	

Img. 40: Space information in the inspector

8.1 Notice Regarding Secondary Data/Log Data

Personal data saved as files within a Space can be permanently deleted, together with all their contents, by a member of the Space with administrator privileges. The names of the files remain in the Space log file for as long as the Space exists.

Every user who creates a Space is, by default, the owner and administrator of the Space. If this user deletes the Space from the server, all of the data in the Space, including the log file with all its contents, are deleted (all primary and secondary data are deleted).

If a member leaves a Space, all information in relation to that member (e.g. membership, joining the Space, leaving the Space, which data they edited, etc.) is kept within the log file. The log file will not be deleted as long as the Space exists. If, for example, if a member who is leaving a Space insists that all of their data be deleted, the Space itself must be deleted. If you wish to retain the data in the Space added by other Space members the data must be backed up before the Space's deletion, a new Space must be created and the data must be moved into the new Space.

8.2 Notice to Companies Required to Store Confidential Data

TeamDrive is designed to store and share confidential data and information. The encryption methods and technologies used by the TeamDrive client safeguards all data from being accessed by unauthorized third parties.

Unauthorized access to your data can only be initiated by the user. For example, wrongfully assigning user access rights to a Space.

We recommend, to companies required to store confidential data, using password protection, for example, when sending Space invitations. Protecting your invitations with passwords add an additional level of protection and require the invited user to enter the given password before they can accept the invitation. We advise using a password which contains numbers and upper/lowercase letters.

© 2014 TeamDrive Systems GmbH

Icon Glossary g

File.

File Descriptions



Copy file (TeamDrive Explorer).

Received file (Message window view).



Deleted file (Message window view).

The file is currently open. The file will not be synchronized until it has been closed.

Creating a copy of a file that is currently open.

Status Bar



they are closed/no longer in use. Open Message window.

Warning! Files are currently open/in use.

These files will not be synchronized until

Open Space window.

Open Members window.

Toolbar



Invite a member.

Create a Space.



Synchronize manually.



Normal Space member.



User Descriptions

Notification in the Message window that a

member has accepted the invitation.

Notification in the Message window that a member has left the Space.



Inivte all my devices.



Invited a member via email who does not have a TeamDrive account.



Device with a TeamDrive installation.



Divice with a TeamDrive installation (your PC).



Device with a TeamDrive installation.

Divice with a TeamDrive installation (your PC).

Toolbar



Check for invitations.

Show/Hide side window.

Space Descriptions



TeamDrive. Spaces.

Archived TeamDrive Space.

TeamDrive Space metadata. Data is on the server (only file information is stored locally).

TeamDrive read-only Space. Data in this Space will only be downloaded.

Space is offline.



Space synchronization is off.

Notification of the successful creation of a Space.

Notification that a Space will be deleted.

Notification of an error during synchronization (more information is displayed in the status field of the file in the Activity window).

Create a new Space.

Create a new Space using an existing folder in the file system.

Folder Descriptions



Folder in a Space.

Create a new folder in a Space.

Delete a folder in a Space.



TeamDrive recycle bin (files are only permanently deleted when the recycle bin is emptied).

File Overlays



(File State) Unconfirmed.

(File State)

Conflict.

File in the file system cannot be replaced.

(File State) Not available (the file

is in the cache or on the server but not in the local file system).

TeamDrive cannot access the file.

File has been deleted.

Processing file.

Tray



TeamDrive is running and currently synchronizing data.

Synchronization has been switched off.



TeamDrive does not have an internet connection or is not able to connect to your Space(s).

TeamDrive does not have an internet connection or is unable to reach your Space(s) and all data has not been synchronized.

TeamDrive is synchronizing data.